History of Tuttle'!s Grove United Mcthodist Church

As a preclude to the history of Tuttle's Grove United Mcthodist Church, it seccms appropri-
atc that a short sketch about the coming of the Quakers or Fricnds:into the county as carly
as 1721, and-establishing the Corc Sound Mccting House on the very site of the prescnt
church bulldlng, will be of 1ntcrost. : :

Tuttlo's Grcvc United I"hurch"mul‘.cl:uag ‘has the distinction of b01ng located on the oldust
chyrch . sitc in Carterct County, although it is not the oldest church building, o

Let us look back to the ycar 1721. At that time a large group of Quakers, cspccially
frow Rhode Island, camc into Cartcrct County to cstablish their homes, as well as to havo
porfoct frcedom to worship according to their belicf.

hlSuOTV docs not relate how these sturdy pioncers arrived in the county. " Thosce who trck-
ked their. way through the unchartercd forests over roads 1little better than Indian trails,
were Qndowcd w1th a ‘rugged manhood not to be found in prescnt-day gencrations.

Ib is bclicved that the grecater number of these sturdy homescckers, ccﬁing to a new land,
came by boat, for two of thc principal leaders of the band, William Borden and Henry Stanton
woro boat bullders in Newport, Rhode Island.

As thesc two loadors stand out most prominent in Ouaker history of the county, we will
give them. tho credit for cstablishing a Quaker community, as well as being the leaders in
the bulld;ng of two icoting Houscs; onc on the site of the prcsnnt Tuttlet!s Grove inited
Methodist Church, known: as: the Coro Sound Mceting Housc and onc in thc Clubfoot Creck scc-
tion, .known .as uha Clubfoot Creck lecting Housc. The site of the latter has passcd from
the memory:of present gencrations. Tuttle's Grove has kept alive the,site of the Corc Sound
Meeting Housc.

Williem Borcden, before coming to the new colony, was a prominent ship builder in Newport,
Rhode .Tsland, &s wcll as a manufacturcr of duck material from flax for the making of sails,

He scttled in the Harlowe township, purchasing a large tract of land bordering- ﬁcwport
River, vhore he cstablished a saw mill and ‘shipyard in that scction known today as 1ill
Crock., He took an active interest in the political affairs of the new county. He was cl-
ceted to the Assembly, but was not allowed +o scrve bccausc he would notiake the oath of
officec as requircd, . :

Henry Stanton took up his grant of 1900 acres castward from Corc Crcck, which must have
extoended to the boundaries of the churchsite, for there is rccordcd that he gave to Friends
in Cartright Prceinct, under date of Scptember 23, 1737, two acres of land adjoining the
land given by Nickles Briant on which to build a Mcoting House.

The history of these two men make an intercsting study. As onc follows down the linc of
Henry Stanton, they will find that hc was the grecat grandfather of Edwin Stanton, Scoretary
of War under President Lincoln end that Edwint's father was born on the old plantatlon a i
short dlstanco from this church., -

Growth of the Quaker scttlement along the Newport River, as well as in adjoining counties,
brought about the forming of scveral Monthly Mectings, including. the Core Sound and:Clubfoot
Crock. . The first meeting rccorded as being held in this county was at the home of William
Borden cn August 1, 1733, From this gathering was formed the Core sound Monthly Mceting,
growing in membeorship to the cxtent that by 1736 the nced arosc for- the building of a Meet-
ing Housc, From Fricnds in Rhodc Tsland camc the sum of 60 pounds to apply to the building
of the Corc Sound Mccting Housc, :

Little is known of Nickles Briant except that he gave the first plat of land on which
the Mceting Housc was built during the yecar 1736. The first meceting of Friends in the new
structure was hcld on the third day of January, 1737.

The need arising for a community cemctery, Henry Stanton, under date of September 23,
1737, decded to the Friends, two acres of land adjoining that given by Nickles Briant.,
Benjamin Small was assigned to pale or fence in the graveyard. Persons interested in gen-
calogical recscarch of carly Quekers will find only one stonc standing in this ancicent bury-
ing ground upon which the inseription can’ bo raiscd--it is that of Joseph Borden who dicd
January r 6, 1825 at the age of 25

To get an idea of how long ago this site was uscd for worship, it takes us back to. the
time when we werc under the flag of England—-forty ycars before therc was a "Star Spangled:
Banncer" and to the time when George Washington was but four ycars old., It is truc that
scrvices of the Church of England werc rcad &t intervals in the building in Beaufort uscd
as a Court Housc,: but therc was no church ouilding therc for another 37 ycars and morcy and
the sccond. church in thc county, Bell's ' Chapcl, on the Sound above Morchecad City, was not -
built for anothor 20 years.
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Thc old Quakor Mootlng Houso, aecordlng to a sketch nade, from a doscrlptlon by Jr. Alex
Foroman who "sat mceting in it" was a littlc in front and to the right of the present
building -~ facing toward Becaufort. In it over a period of 100 years and more worshipped
Stantons, Hills, Bordens, Pacquinéts, Rustulls, Bishops, Hortcns, Jcssops, Maces, Williams,
Frazicrs, Robersons, Wests, Owens,' Hbllcns, Davlsos, Eubanks, Chadwicks, Harriscs, Howards,
Physiocs, Vadesj Lovetts, Forcmans, Rumlcys, Scotts, Cartwrights, chklnsons, and scorcs of
othcrs.

By 1912, the Quakers were beginning tgﬁbo concernod over the Mothodists who came in-after
the Revolution. "Fourth month" of that-ycar, William Ripley was called up for forsaking
Hooting and attonding "sovcral mrwtings amongst the Methodists and following their modes".

Tho Corc Sound Mootlng bcgan to ‘fall off from thon on, not becausc all the Ouakers be-
came Mcthodists, ‘but becausc pregsurciwas brought to bear on them from within their church
for owning and cmploying slaves. Farmers cant't farm without labor, so with thc opcning .of
the free states in the West, family after family migrated to Ohio and Illinois. As the
group left bchind grew smaller and: smaller, more and more frequently members were disowned
for "marrying out of unity", and "marrying out of” unity" usually mcant marrying a Mcthodisti.
mtil about 1850 lcthodist was thc only other church denomination in thls soctlon.

By 18L1 the number of Quakers had.bbcomo so small that tho muutlng was "lald down'", rc-
cords worc given up to the Quartérly Mecting, and mombers were transferred to Contontnac
Meotlng,. Nuakers arc said to have revisited the Veeting House until it perished from decay.
‘One of -the familics left is also said to have-taken up residence in the Meeting House until
he. could. orcct -his own, and as long as the building stood, hc and other families met regu-
larly for silent worship.

“The Mecting Housc was built on the land of Wickles Briant, long dead at the time the
MeLtlng was "laid down"; and it wasg’1855 beforc a deed to the property was perfocted. At
that time it was de *dod to Charlcs G. Forcman and Ambers Joncs from William H., Davis to be
held in trust for the ycarly liccting of Fricnds at Guilford College for $1.00 and the fur-
ther consideration of having the privilege of holding worship of Almighty God....shall we
cver so. desire, deeded the property to the Mothodists. Many of the old Quaker families
were_licthodists by this timc so it stems a natural transfer. In the present day membership
of Tuttle's Grove are lMethodists whosc forcbearers worshipped here as Friends and were among
those disowned for loving and marrying lMcthodist boys and girls.

Beside-the highway in front of the church today is an historical marker which is number-
cd C-35, erccted by the Archives and Highway Departments in 1959, which rcads as follows:
"Corc Sound Mccting, Quaker Centor for more than 100 years after 1733, migration west
was onc causc of decline, lceting Housc was 50 yards west,"

It was on the sitc of this lMccting Housc, which had been decded by the Fricnds to the
Ann Strcet Methodist Church in Beaufort, that in 1898, just before the turn of the century,
the Rov. D.Hs Tuttlc, who at that time was pastor of the Ann Street Church, conducted an
cvangelistic scrvice or old-timc revival., A tent answered for a house of worship, benches
for pews and the packod ground for a floor. i '

Crudb as thls "housc of Worship" was, under its canvas roofing there was crcattd a
spiritual awakening that brought forth the present church which stands as a mcmorlal to the
Rev. Mr. Tuttle, 1

Wlthln the n\xt year or two following that mecting and the holding of several rcligious
meetings in homes of the community, a church organization was formed on Scptember 18, 1902,
under the leadership of the Rov. J.H.M. Giles, who was on the Carteret Circuit at that time.
Until a housc of worshlp was bullt, services were conducted in the Wire Grass school build-
ing.

Scven charter members made up the church socicty: Durant E. Langdale, Isadora Langdalc,
William D. Hunnings, Martha C. Hunnlngs Sara V. Dudloy, Mrs. Edward Chadwick, Mary Arthur,:
and Sophronla Jennett. ;

Constructlon of thc present bulldlng was startud in 1902. Generous donations were made
of building matcrial and labor. From the’ saWw mills of Tom Norris came the frame work for
the building, cut from the trecs on the church site. Financial aid came from various sources
both from individuals and frqm the wark of the ‘women of . the . church.,

The follOW1ng year the: flrst wvddlng was solemnlzud by tha pastor of tho young church
when liiss Emma chklnson and Wﬁst Nob'WLrL marrlcd :

By 190h thp mcmbﬂrshlp Was 1ncr0ased.by the follow1ng pqrsons Guorgo P. Low1s Gcorgc
H. Lowis, Susan J« Lewis,! Louis %' French, Emma Fronch, John R. Hill, Emma L. Hlll, Annie™
S. Hill, Allcc Lewis, Daicy G, Dudlcy, and Dollic L. Dudley.
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On Sunday, April 29, 1906, the Rev, Mr. Tuttle, then located at Fayetteville, returned
to the scenc of his cvangelistic service from which this church was begun and dedicated the
new church., On this occasion were baptiscd Sterling Lewis, Geraldine Lewis and Virginia
Simpson.

The Rev. W.A. Piland was pastor at the timefdf the dedication and tﬁe;tr@s@eeémand ste-
wards were: Durant Langdalc, William D. Hunnings and iirs. Sara Dudley. . .

Within the next ycar both tirs, Sara Dudléy;and Mr. Hunnings passed away. Ir. Hunnings
was the first to be buried in the ¥ethodist cemetery adjoining the church. -

The deprcssion of 1931 found the church in bad condition, both spiritual as well as fi-
nancial, to the cxtent that the Conference was considering abolishing the chargal To the
Rev, F.B. Brandenburg, who was on the circuit from 1921 to 193L, is given the credit for

building up the church again, raishg funds for general repairs, and increasing attcndanco.

By 1945, the church having increased in membership and interest, an uxton31vo _program
of remodeling took place. Funds werce raised and from generous donatlons the church was
repaired and repainted. :

Prcaching services had never been held more than once a month until 1950 but a weekly
Sunday School had been maintained in which families of the members had been increased by
members of other churches living nearby. This remains true even today. Ten superlnton—
dants have served the Sunday School since its beginning. They arc: Durant Langdale, MNrs.
Mollic Stanton, Mrs. Effic Sabiston, C.E.Dail, Henry Lewis, lirs. Dollie Dudley, Mrs. W.B.
Norris, Mrs, Marie Campen, Mr. B.A. Phelps and lrs. Waric Campen who is scrving at the
prCSbﬂt time for her sccond term.

Under the leadership of the Rev. R.iH. Poulk, who was assigned to the charge in 1953,
the church enjoyed an increase in membership and attendance. Tn 1956 the membership num-
bered L5 and in that same year an addition was made to the building which furnished the
much needed room’ for the growing Sunday School and young people's societies. This new 5
addition was dedicated "the lartha Hunnings" annex, in honor of lMrs, Martha Hunnings, who .. =
at that time was the only surviving charter member of the church.

The church seems to have been tossed about somewhat by Conference: First it was on the
old Carteret circuit; in 1919 it was placed on a newly created charge known as the Har-
lowe circuit; in 1925 Conference combined the Newport and Harlowe circuits into one, known
as the Newport-Harlowe circuit; in 1928 the church became a part of the Straits-Harlowe
circuit; in 1949 it was changed over to the Havelock circuit. At this time, 1949, the
Core Creek Church was received into the Methodist Conference. This newly received church,

ttle!'s Grove Church, and the Merrimon Church, along with the North River Church united
in 1950 to compose the Beaufort Circuit. These four churches made up the Beaufort Circuit
until 1962, when the North River Church was taken off the charge by Conference. This left
Core Creek, Merrimon, and Tuttle's Grove composing the Beaufort Circuit. These three
churches today compose what is known as the Core Creek Charge.

The United Methodist Women of the church, locally known as the "Dollie Dudley Circle",
has been one of the most active arms of the Church since its inception.

The first music of the church was furnished by a bellows organ which was purchased new.
This was followed by a piano which was sued solely until 1961 when a new Baldwin electro-
nic organ was purchased by the church. The first organist of the church was Dollie Fore-
man,Dudley; she was followed by Daisy Dudley Lewis, Lela Merrill Nelson, Ruby Sabiston
Feltou, lfamie Merrill Nelson, Geraldine Lewis, Rosa Eubanks, Mrs. Nettie Taylor Tallman,
Ifrs, Daisy Springle, and Mrs., Evelyn Jordan, who is the present organist. Dollie Foreman
Dudley was active in the music of the church for a period of fifty years or more.

The present church membership is 50.

During the life of he church the following pastors have served:

Rev. J.H.l. Giles 1902-04
Rev, W.A. Piland 1905-06
Rev. D.A. Futrell 1907-09
Rev, J.P., Pate 1909-10
Rev, C.0. Durant 1911
Rev. F.T. Fulcher 1912-13
Rev. W,B. Humble 191k
Rev. C.,H. Caviness 1915-18
Rev. Guy Hamilton 1919
Rev. J.M, Caraway 1920
Rev. W.T. Cheek 192122
Rev. J.C. Carter 192l

Rev. H.L. DAVIS 1925-26
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Rev. E.W. Downum IR - PR —
"Rev: E.L. Stack - Rl - S ait
Rev. J.C. Harmon % 7" e e L
Rev., F.B. Brandenburg ' ° 193i-34 -
Rev. J.L. Joice 1935-37
Rev. i.D. lcLamb S L1938
Rev, il.W. Stevenson™ ¥ & ° 7 49362)3 ¢
Rev. C.J. Honeycu%5” LA W BT AolRe T ¢
Rev. H.B. Lewis _19L6-k7
- Rev, W.D; Caviness * ' ¢ 9h7
Rev. C, llaness ifitchell " CoA9k9
Rev. L.A. Lewis . 1950-53
Rew, Rilie Poulk © HT . =l 0 (pgBgG@geee
Rev, James E. Smith LR AT YRR P
Rev. Leonard YMayo - ¢ =~ = 196063
Rev. W.D. loore g 7 R g BEk
Rev. G.T. Bridgers ) 1963
""Rev, L.A. Lewis - Lt T 196l
Rev. C.P, Mason "L 08l
Rev, C.I, Umstead 1965-69
Rev, H.F. Yearick - 1969-72
" Rev', Ronald Cyr C1972-Th
Rev. -Stephen kann . - 197h-75 +
Rev, Vance Lewis i 1975

The site upon which Tuttle's Grove United lethodist Chiurch stands has served as a land-,
mark for Christians for more than 250 years. May it long continue to serve as
"God'!s Acre",
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